
  

 

 
 
 
 

THIS ADDENDUM MUST BE ACKNOWLEDGED. 
 

THIS ADDENDUM SHALL BECOME A PART OF THIS SOLICITATION. 
Amend Invitation to Bid 15-MC-NORTHFIELD FF&E as follows: 
 
See attached photos of teacher spaces and CAD files. Please contact Brian Swift 
brian_swift@dpsk12.org to obtain the excel file for the pricing template. 
 
Bottom of windows in library is 3’4” 
 
1) Is the CAD version of the building plan available to be supplied to the vendors?  

A) Yes, this will be provided via addendum or a way to access them. 
 
2) Upon reviewing the building plan provided, there are some classrooms labeled as “Moderate 

needs” and “Severe needs” however they are not included in the list of classrooms that 
require furniture. Should our proposal include furniture for these rooms? If so, based upon 
our experience these types of classrooms require different types of furniture and often times 
in a different or limited configuration as compared to the other classrooms, therefore please 
define what the furniture needs of these rooms will be.  
A) Severe needs classroom is for a Multi-intensive program and should be furnished 

appropriately. 
 
3) During the conference call there was some discussion about the teacher rooms and that 

standard office cubicles are not desired. Please clarify what the storage needs are for these 
rooms. For example, should any filing storage be included? If so, what  
A) Picture of an example will be provided. Teachers should have some personal storage 

space in their desk/seating area. 
 
4) Regarding the teachers desks, would a standing height mobile lectern and standard height 

desk that are modular yet provide the ability to connect together meet your requirements for 
the flexibility in height options?  
A) Perhaps. Hard to say without an image.  This should be either or for the desk but not 

both. 
 

5) Please explain your definition of “alternative seating options” in the classroom. Please clarify 
if “(2-4) alternative seating options” means (2-4) seats or (2-4) types of seating options.  
A) 2-4 seats. May be something like a standing desk or other alternative seating option for 

students besides the standard desk and chair. 
 
6) Please explain what your definition of a “studio arts program” is.  

A) IB visual arts courses. Painting, drawing, 3D arts.   
 
7) Is there a preference for student chairs or stools in the art room?  

A) Interested in either.  Stools with backs are likely better.   
 

8) Is a teacher desk required in the art room?  
A) Yes. 

 
9) The Principal’s office is noted on the building plan as room 101 however on the list of 

specifications, it is noted as 220, please clarify.  
A) It is 220. 
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10) In the Principal’s office, please define what “lots of bookshelves” is, i.e.; (5) 72”H, etc. 

A) Shelving for about 500 books or as appropriately sized for the space.   
 

11) What are the required quantities of the items in the music room?  
A) Class size of about 35. 

 
12) Are choral risers to be included in the music room? If so, to accommodate how many 

students? Do the risers need to be transportable?  
A) Yes, about 40. They should not be permanently built into the room. 

 
13) Please define your requirements for the teacher/conductor stand. For example, should this be 

an elevated platform? 
A) This will be an elevated platform approx. 10” high and about 3’x 3’ with a stand 

appropriate for the music teacher to conduct from. 
 
14) Is a teacher desk required in the music room?  

A) No. 
 
15) Where will the power be located in the computer lab?  

A) This is shown on included drawings. 
 
16) Should the library design include study table/chairs? If so, what quantity?  

A) No.  
 
17) Should the library design include any soft/lounge style seating?  

A) Seating such as benches. 
 
18) Should we include items for the cot room (2-103) in our proposal? 

A) Yes. 
 
19) Please define your requirements for “inside delivery”. For example, are you requiring the 

furniture to be delivered to a staging area or directly to each room? 
A) Furniture is to be delivered to each room, unpacked, assembled and boxes and packing 

materials removed. 
 
20) Will you accept multiple product recommendations for the same item? For example, good, 

better, best options for student chairs.  
A) It is most ideal to have a single item proposed for each item with the exception of the 

classroom areas that are requesting multiple seating options. 
 
21) Will one or more vendors will be awarded the bid? How will DPS determine the sole vendor 

or number of vendors?  
A) DPS may award to one or multiple vendors for individual items or spaces depending on 

scoring and what is best for the school. 
 
22) May we submit a singular CAD drawing for each category of furnishings and/or each layout 

option?  
A) Please do not submit files in CAD format.  Drawings and renderings should be in PDF 

format for electronic files.  A single drawing for each category of furnishings or layout is 
acceptable. 

 
23) How and when will the Northfield CAD file be distributed? Will drop box or some other web-

based portal be considered for quick access?  
A) DPS will communicate via addendum how CAD files will be provided. 

 
24) How many students per room? (Specialized Science Rooms) 

A) Class size of 32.  
 

25) When you state "bar height", what height are you asking for? (Specialized Science Rooms) 



  

A) Standard lab height. (Typically approximately 36” minimum) 
 
 

26) Do you have a preference on top size (length and width)? (Specialized Science Rooms) 
A) No. We want to see what ideas the vendors have for innovative furnishing.  If tables are 

mobile they need to be easily moved by students.  Tables still need to be chemical 
resistant top tables. 

 
27) Do you have a preference of wood or steel frames? (Specialized Science Rooms) 

A) Steel Frame Preferred. We want to see what ideas the vendors have for innovative 
furnishing. 

 
28) Delivery/Install:  Please confirm the delivery times and requirements, and the installation 

schedule.  Per the information in the Proposal, a 4 hour delivery window and an installation 
period of less than 2 days is quoted.  Is this accurate?  As a general comment, installation of 
a project of this size takes 7 to 10 14+ hour days.  3 Oaks is very accustomed to this length of 
work day and project size and scope and doing what it takes to get the project done on time 
and on or under budget but the installation timeframe would need to be increased.  In 
addition, there will be approximately 10-12 full semis that will require unloading, so the 
delivery hours would definitely need increased. 
A) Delivery hours will be between 7 AM and 5 PM local Denver time.  Installation and setup 

may be outside of those hours so long as the buildings facility manager is on site.  The 
window for delivery dates should be no earlier than July 20, 2015 and all deliveries and 
installations must be complete no later than July 31, 2015. 

 
29) Reception 145/147: Are there built in reception desks or do those need to be quoted? 

A) None built in. 
 
30) Music Room 106:  Do instruments or instrument storage need to be quoted?  If so, please 

provide instrument list. 
A) No instruments.  

 
31) Art Room 107:  Does art or art equipment need to be quoted?  If so, please provide 

equipment list. 
A) Art and art equipment is not part of this solicitation, only the furniture for the art room. 

 
32) Clinic Room 103:  Should this area be quoted? 

A) Yes. 
 
33) Computer Lab Room 222:  Should the tables include power or data modules?  If so, should 

they be hard wire or soft wire?  As discussed today, please provide electrical/data plans for 
this area.  
A) Tables can include power or just the means to run the connections for the computers.  

Data and power locations provided in the drawings. 
  
34) In the Organization of Proposal Response, Tab A, is the cover letter the letter from DPS, 

page 1 of the RFP?  Please confirm the Vendor Acknowledgement and Vendor Information 
Form is titled “Cover Sheet-File in Tab A”.  Is the Transmittal Sheet our own document or 
does DPS have a format it prefers? 
A) Yes the Vendor Acknowledgement and Vendor Information form would be the Cover 

sheet. The transmittal sheet is up to individual proposers, there is no preferred format. 
 
35) Per IX. D. Delivery, prices, quotes and deliveries are to be FOB destination, freight prepaid; 

please confirm that the pricing form should contain product plus freight cost.  In the 
Organization of Proposal Response, Tab B – Price, please confirm that installation and debris 
removal costs should be listed separately as “other pricing/cost data necessary to carry out 
the project”, or as discussed, please address these items via an updated pricing submittal 
sheet. 
A) DPS will revise the pricing template to include a separate column that should include, 

freight/shipping, installation and setup as well as removal of debris. 



  

 

 
 
If your proposal has been submitted and you wish to amend it, please modify your proposal on 
company letterhead.  The amended proposal must be received prior to or included at the time 
and date set for the proposal opening.  Each modification submitted to the District's Purchasing 
Office located at 1617 S. Acoma St. Denver, CO 80223.  It must have Vendor’s name and 
return address and the applicable RFP number and title of the RFP clearly marked on the 
face of the envelope. 
 
If more than one modification is submitted, the modification bearing the latest date of receipt by 
the District's Strategic Sourcing Office will be considered the valid modification. 
 
*****This addendum must be acknowledged, whether or not you amend your proposal.***** 

 
This Addendum must be included in your submittal or proposal, providing you do not need to 
amend your proposal. 

PRINT OR TYPE YOUR INFORMATION 

Name of Company: ____________________________________________ Fax: _____________ 

Address: ________________________ City/State: ________________ Zip: ______________ 

Contact Person: ___________________ Title: _____________________ Phone: ___________ 

Authorized Representative’s Signature: ____________________________ Phone: ___________ 

Printed Name: ____________________ Title: _____________________ Date: _____________ 

 Approved by: ______________ Date: _____________ 

 Reviewed by: ______________ Date: _____________ 
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